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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Lucina Land Development Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Lucina Land Development
Limited (“the Company”), which compzise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as

"the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

sresaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act)) 1 the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accountng Standards (Tod ASY) specified under
section 133 of the Act, of the state of affaits of the Company as at 31 March 2023, its profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SA’s) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requitements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for out opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key andit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report




Eey Audit Matter

Aundit Response

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s policies on revenue recognition
is set out in Note 5.4 1o the standalone financial
statements.

As per the principles of Ind AS 115 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”, revenue from
sale of residential/commercial properties is
recognized when the performance obligations
are essentially complete.

w

The performance obligations are considered to
be complete when control over the property has
been transferred to the buyer ie. offer for
possession of properties have been issued to the
customers.

The amount of revenue and cost thereon on
contracts with customers forms a substantial part
of the statement of profit and loss and
management judgement is also involved in the
mnterpretation of these conditions.

The above transaction required audit focus due
to the significant impact of the same on the
accompanying standalone financial statement of
the Company. The matter has been considered
to be of most significance to the audit and
accordingly, has been considered as a key audit
matter for the current year audit.

Our audit procedure

s related to the revenue recognition

included, but not lmited to the following:

o Dvaluated the appropriateness of the Company’s

revenue recognition policies with respect o the
principles of Ind AS 115;

° Enquiring from the management and inspecting the

internal controls related to revenue recognition for
ensuring the completeness of the customer sales,
issue of possession letters and the recording of
customer receipts;

e  We have performed the following procedures for

revenue recognition:

a.  Verification of the possession letters issued on
sample basis along with the proof of deliveries
to  ensure completeness;

Verification of the collection from customers
the units sold from the statement of
accounts on a sample basis to ensure receipt of
the amount; and

Performing cut-off procedures and other
analytical procedures like project wise variance
analysts and margin analysis to find any
anomalies,

o

for

@ Ensured that the disclosure requirements of Ind AS

115 have been complied with.

Assessing the carrying value of inventory

The accounting policies for Inventories are set
out i1 Note 5.6 to the Standalone financial
statements.

laventories of the Company comprise of real
estate properties (including land) are disclosed
under Note 12.

Impairment  assessment  of inventory s
considered as a significant risk as there is a risk
that recoverability of the carrying value of the
inventory could not be established, and potential
impairment charge might be required to be
recorded in the consolidated  financial
statements. Management’s assessment of the
recoverable amounts is a judgmental process
which requires the esdmation of the net
realisable value, which takes into account the
valuations of the properties held and cash flow
projections of real estate properties under
development.

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of inventory held
by the group included, but not limited to the followings:

(]

Obtained an understanding of the management
process for identification of possible impairment
indicators and process performed by the management
for impairment testing and the management process of
determining the Net Realisable Value (INRVy;

Bnquired of the management and inspected the
internal controls related to inventory valuation along
with the process followed to recover/adjust these and
assessed whether impairment is required,

All material properties under development as at 31
March 2023 were discussed on case-to-case basis with
the management for their plan of recovery/adjustment;

For real estate properties under development, obtained
and assessed the management evaluation of the NRV.
We also assessed the management’s valuation
methodology applied in determining the recoverable
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the area which had the greatest effect on our assumptions and our understanding of the business;
overall audit strategy and allocation of resources
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i planning and completing our audit. ®  Where the management involved specialists to perform

valuations, evaluated the objectivity and independence
of those specialists;

¢ For land parcels, obtained and verified the valuation of
land parcels as per the government prescribed circle
rates, wherever necessary;

® Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the cash flow
projections; and

We assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the
disclosures made by the management for the impairment
losses recognized in accordance with applicable accounting
standards.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Revort thereon
P

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other information does not
wclude the standalone financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinton on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
mformation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we ate
required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is
obtained at the date of this anditor’s report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting tecords in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; tnaking
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone




In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to Liquidate
the Company or to cease opetations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basts of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ ldentify and assess the T’i.‘iiﬁj of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that 1s sufficient and apy vroplm,c to prmxfi{: a basts for our opinion. The risk of not detecting

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

° Hvaluate the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are requited to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
coptinue as a going conceran.

* Hvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
centrol that we identify during our andit.




d ot

, related

e g . J5 R vt g P . srbs oo .
ar on outr independence, and where applical

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Otrder”), issued by the Central
Government of India in texms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A’,
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Ozder, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,

A ? . > - b . p - .
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

33

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid st

Section 133 of the Act.

dalone financial starements comply with Ind AS specified nader

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in ‘Annexure B’. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

-
R

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

t The Company has disclosed the impact of pendmng litigations oo its financial position in its
standalone financial statements as at 31 Mazch 2023 Refer Note 50 to the standalone financial
statements.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023.

iit. There were no amounts which were requited to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023.

e
g

- (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or eatity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security ot
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“F
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ot on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaties™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
citcumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.
As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company

only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

{h) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

pat

i
Company did not pay any remuneration to its Directors during the yeat.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.

Chartered Accountants

R

Firm's Registration Number.: 005975N
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Partner
Membesship No.:527886

Qg

UDIN: 23527886BGYTB]9513

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2023



With reference to

Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023, based on the audit
procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the standalone financial statemerts
i |

of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books of

account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

6] In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets:
(@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(b)
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quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B)  The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of intangible assets.

The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Cotopany and the nature of its assets.

The Company does not own any immovable propesty including investment properties

He) ot

are held in the name of the Company. Accordingly, reporting vnder clause

L

the Order 1s not applicable to the Corapany

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets

during the vear.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, there are no proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and

based on verification carried out by us, the management has conducted physical
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year and no material
discrepancies between physical inventory and book records were noticed on physical
verification.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the company has not been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, clause 3(it)(b) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the Company has not made any investment in,
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
(LLPs). The Company has granted interest free loan to its subsidiaries company during
the year.
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Report to the members of the
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en below:

(< in Millions)

Advances in

Particulars Guatantees Security Loans
/ nature of loans

Aggregate amount
during the yeat

-Subsidiaries - B 0.60 i
-Others (Fellow ‘
subsidiary) - - 30.70 -

Balance outstanding
as at balance sheet

date
-Subsidiaries - - 65.50 -
-Others Fellow ) ) 78.80 )

subsidiary)

The Company has not made any investment, provided guarantees or given any security
during the year. However, the Company has granted loans to subsidiaty company at nil
nterest rate which is lower than the market rate of interest. In respect of such loans, we
have not been provided with adequate explanation of the benefits, if any, accruing to the

Company for giving such loans, we are unable to comment as to whether the terms and

conditions of grant of such loans, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

The Company has granted loans that are repayable on demand. For loans outstanding

J & P £
at the year end, we are informed that the Company has not demanded repayment of
any such loan during the year, in our opinion, repayment of the principal amount is

regular.

No loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company which have
fallen due during the year, have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to

settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same parties.

The Company has granted loans or advances in the natuse of loans, which are repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms ot period of repayment, as per details below:

® in Millions)
Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate of loans
- Repayable on demand (A) 144.30 - 144.30

-Agreement does not specify any

terms or period of repayment (B) - - -
Total (A+B) 144.30 - 144.30
Percentage of loans 100%
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and 186 of the Comparnes Act, 201

guarantees and security provided by it, as ﬁppl}.{:ﬁbleﬁ

According to the information, explanation and tepresentation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not accepted deposits or deemed deposits to
which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under, are applicable. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in
respect of products where maintenance of cost records has been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules
framed there under and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

In our opinton, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is regular m deposiung undisputed statutory dues including goods and

state i'}\’;ﬂ.'éfﬁﬁ{i&?t income- tax, sa les-tax, s service

services tax, provident fund, employees’

tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

According to the mformation and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of the WNature of Gross Period to Forum where
statute dues Amount (F which the dispute is
Millions) | amount relates pending
Income Tax Act, Income Tax 17.90 AY -2011-12 CIT(Appeal)
1961
The Finance Act, Service Tax 19.70 Financial Year CESTAT
1994 2011-12 to
February 2016
The Central Credit in 8.70 2012-13 to June- Assistant
Goods & Service Trans -1 17 Commissioner
Tax Act, 2017
The Central VAT Input 6.40 Trans-1 as at Joint
Goods & Service Credit 30.06.2017 Commissioner
Tax Act, 2017 claimed in of State Taxes,
Trans-1 (Appeal)
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which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has issued Non-Convertible Debentures. However,
there is no defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender. The company does not have any borrowings from financial
wstitutions or government.

According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations
received from banks and other lenders and written representation received from the
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that
the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

audit procedures, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause

Ly
[
s

1x)(c) o

the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company,
we report that no funds raised by the Company on short term basis have been utilised for

E{)ng term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures petformed
by us, the Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally)
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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and explana come across any instance of
material fraud by the Coun mmiy or on fhz Company, noticed or reported durin

have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Governiment, during the year and up to the date of this report.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company duting the year.

The Company 1s not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xitj of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedutes performed
by us, all transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related

party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial siatements, as required

under Indimn Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related P:

rmpantes (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules '3?‘1 as nrcwrﬁ) f} under section 133 of the

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the Company has an internal audit systein as required under section 138 of the Act
which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The internal audit 1s performed as per a planned program approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company. We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors
of the Company ull date for the period under audit.

ceording to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and
accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) and (b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investmnent Company and there are no Core Investment
Companies in the Group. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (c) and (d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incutred cash losses of Rs. 240.80 millions in the current financial
year 2022-23 but there is no cash losses during immediately preceding financial year.
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On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilides, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, and subject to
the Note No. 54(d) of the Financial Statement, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one vear from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guatantee nor any assutance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regards to Cotporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clanse 3(xx) of the Oxder is

not appheable.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number.: 005975N

Partner

Membership No.:527886
UDIN: 23527886BGYTB]951.
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Aashish KVerma

L3

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2023



[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” in the Independent
Audiror’s Report of even date to the members of Lucina Land Development Limited on the standalone

financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporiing under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lucina Land Development
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting critetia established by the Company consideting the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT”).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of s assets, the pr
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of

reliable financial information, as required under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note requite that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
mnternal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls

operated effecuvely 1 all marerial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed tisk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,




s mternal financial control over financial reporting 1s a process designed o provide reasonable
- regarding the relability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faitly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authotisations of management and ditectors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management overtide of controls, matertal misstatements due to error
r fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls

~

sver financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
fmancial teporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

T

In our opinion, the Company has, in all matetial respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such intermal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number.:

MA@

f\:lbhi‘iﬂ\ Vetma
Partner

Membership No.: 527886
UDIN: 23527886BGYTBJ9513

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2023
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
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8
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4. Cash flow fsom operatiag aoivities

Profit / (oss) before meone s for the year

Adjusiments for:

Deprecaton and amortsabon espense 030
Tasterest menme RE
Profity/loss on sale of Propery Plant & Lguipne 370
Profit on sale of lovesiments 7.460
Provisions for employer benefir 8 others 9.00
Exceptional frems (Refer MNote No.-51) {2.270,00) -
Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes - (227.40) 856.50
Warking capited changes
Inventones {1,24070) {219.80;
Trade recervables {3970 {178.30;
Others current and non-carent assees {1.60) 866.00
Trade payables 36,20 {65,503
Firancial Habilitics, other Lubilities and provisions 1,110.90 322.20)
Cash generated from / (used in) operating activities T {362.30) 936.30
fncome 1ax (pad) / refund received, net i 120 (11.20)
Net cash flow generated from/(used in) operating activites (361.10) 925.10
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Proceeds from sale of Property Plant & Equipment 3.4} 0.90
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. Cash flow from financing aciivities: (Rejer eore 71
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. Cash and cash equivalents ar the beginning of the year 27.90 34.80
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) : 14.00 ) 27.90
Notes;
G Reconciliation of cash & cash equivalents as per cash flow Statements
Cash and cash equivalents includes (refer note 14}
Cash on hand R .
Balances with banks - o cureent accounis 14,00
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MNature of principal activities

Lucina Land Development Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated on July 25, 2006 as Lucna Land
Development Private Limited and 15 engaged in development of real estate project and the other related and
ancillary activities. The company is involved in developing a project - "Indiabulls Greens Panvel" located at
Panvel, Raigad District, Maharashtra.

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accouating
Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) - read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministty of Corporate Affairs (MCA)),as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard 1s initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hitherto m use,

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 30 May 2023 ‘The revisions to the financial statements are permitted by the Board of Ditectors
after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

Recent accounting pronouncements:

Recent accounting pronouncements Miustry of Corporate Aff {"“MCA”) notifies new standards or
amendments to the existing standards under Companies ( Indian xcro*urxtmg bmﬂdfn&s) Rules as sssued from tume
to time.

On 31 March 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as
below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requites the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual petiods beginning on or after 01
Apl 2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is msignificant in the
fiancial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 o
help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date
for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 Aprl 2023. The Company has
evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment 1s annual periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment
and there is no impact on its financial statement.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepated on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepated on historical cost basis except
for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measure at fair values as
expliged in relevant accounting policies. Fair valuations related to financial assets and financial liabilities are
categotised into level 1, level 2 and level 3 based on the dc,grec to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable.
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General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) - read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA")),as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is inttially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hatherto in use.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authotized and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 30 May 2023. The revisions to the financial statements are permitted by the Board of Directors
after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.
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On 31 March 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as
below:

Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the eatities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01
April 2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the
financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to
help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date
for adoption of this amendment is annual yw;oda beginning on or after 01 April 2023 The Company has
evaluated the amendment and there is no Impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment
and there is no impact on its financial statement.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and shatre based payments which are measure at fair values as
explained in relevant accounting policies. Fair valuations related to financial assets and financial liabilities are
categorised into level 1, level 2 and level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable,
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f%}w fﬁ'macmi staternents have been prepared using &L significant Atccxmnmg policies and measy
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summarised below, These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements.
5.1 Current versus non-curtrent classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in Companies Act 2013, Deferred tax assets and labilities are classified as non-
current assets and non-current labilities, as the case may be.

5.2 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

alion and

Subsequent measurement (deps

f“kpfi‘w wion on property, plant and ec t 18 provided on the st aﬂigw»ﬁﬁ:: method, computed on th

LR

aseful lives (as set our below) prescribed in Schedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013,
Asset class Useful life
Building — temporary structure 1 year
Plant and machinery 12 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 15 recognised
in statement of profit and Joss when the asset s de-recognised.

5.3 Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurensent

Intangible assets (softwates) are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comptises purchase price, borrowing
cost if capitalization criteria ate met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent measurement (amortisation)
The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period four years from the date of its acquisition.




tevenue recognition

he Company applies

ol is transferred and is accounted net

Revenue s recogmised when conts
the revenue recognition criteria to cach nature of the rev
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Rewvense from real estate properties advisory and management servives

Income asising from real estate properties advisory services is recognised in the period i which the services are
being rendered. The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business pracfices to
determine the transaction price. The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed
consideration, variable consideration (if reversal 1s less likely i future), or both.

Profit on sale of invesiment with underlying business

Profit on sale of investments of entities in the real estate business is recognised in the year in such investments are
sold after adjusting the consideration received with carrying value of investment. The said profit is recognised as
part of other operating income as in substance, such sale reflects the sale of real estate business.

Dividend inconse
Dividend income is recognised at the time when right to receive the payment is established, which is generally
when the shareholders approve the dividend.

RO

nterest income 15 recorded on accrual basi: sCtve it

Grain on wnortised cost financial assels
Gain on de-recognition of amortised cost financial assets is recognised in the year when the entire payment is
received against the owtstanding balance of amortised cost financial assets.

5.5 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its mtended use. All
other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

5.6 Inventories
Land other than that transferred to real estate nroperties under development is valued at lower of cost or net
Land other than that transferred to real estate properties under development is valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value.

Real estate properties (developed and under development) includes cost of land under development, internal and
external development costs, construction costs, and development/construction materials, borrowing costs and
related overhead costs and is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and estmated costs of necessary to make the sale.

5.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, based
on internal or external factors. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash
generating unit is estimated. If such recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting date there
is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount s reassessed




5.8 Foreign currency

Fanetional and presentation curvency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR’ or ¥) which is also the functional and presentation
+ \ J

currency of the Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between
} Je v, it A <1 &

the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are converted to functional cutrency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items
denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction.

“xchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year in which they arise.

5.9 Financial instruments

MNon-derivative financial assets

Recognition and initial meassrement

All

the financial asset is also adjusted.

financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of

Subsequent measurement

i Debt instruments at amortised cost — A ‘debt instrument’ i1s measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently tmeasured at amortised cost using the
effective waterest rate (EIR) method.

ii.  Equity investments — All equity investments in scope of Tnd AS 109 Financial Instruments’ (Ind AS
1097 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are generally classified as at
fair value through profit and loss (FVIPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to
classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL).

iii.  Mutual funds — All mutual funds in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value through profit and loss

(FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.




All financial liabilities are recognised initally at fair value and transacton cost that is atrributable to the acquisition
of the financial abilities is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial Habilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

De-recognition of financial labilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial lability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantally modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying
amounts 1s recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivatives

The Company has entered into certain forward (derivative) contracts to hedge risks. These derivatives are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such
' e contract is recognised as income o1 as expense for the pertod.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitdes are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the labilities simultaneously.

5.10 Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. The Company factors historical trends and forward looking
information to assess expected credit losses associated with its assets and impairment methodology applied

depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit
losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial

instrument.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses,
else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, if the financial asset 1s determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

5.11 Income taxes

Tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except
the ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

o

e i
i



rungd as toe e mncome

rdance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items 1
recognised outside profit or loss (e comprehensive Income Or i equity)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on
unrealised tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underying tax loss will be utilised
against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results,
adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and ate recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitles are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside Statement of Profit or Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

5.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

5.13 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values,
where the titne value of money is material

Contingent liability 15 disclosed for:

o Possible obligations which will be confirmed osly by futute events not wholly within the control of the
Company or

® Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain,
related asset is recognized.

5.14 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit ot loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

5.15 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requites management to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the related
disclosures.




Stgnificant management judgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probabiity of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be

utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and interpal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets,

Recoverability of advances/receivables — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed
over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent labilities. However, the
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets -~ Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets, Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underdying

2
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anuicipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the anoual defined benefit

cxpenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the mstrument.
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Lascing Land Development Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

6 B Other Intangible assets (¥ in Million)
Softwares Total

Gross carrying value
At 01 April 2021 12.50 12.50
Additions - -
Disposals/assets written off - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 12.50 12,50
Additions 0.10 0.10
Disposals/assets written off - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 12.60 12.60
Accumulated amortisation
At 01 April 2021 12.50 12.50
Amortisation charge for the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 12.50 12.50
Amortisation charge for the year 0.00 0.00
Balance as at 31 March 2023 12,50 12.50
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 - -
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2023 0,10 0.10

¢ are no contractual commitements for the acquisidon of intangible assets

ntangible assets have been pledged as secusity for borrowings.

005975N
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Lugiva Land Development Ly

§

ramury of significant acvounsing policies

ted

Now-7
Investoents - non-current
Investment in equity shares
Subsidiaries (at cost, fully paid vp), Unguoted®
- Noble Realtores Limited
50,000 (31 March 2022 50,800) equiry shares of 10

lgiri Infrastructure Development Limited

56,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000 ) equity shares of € 10
~ Albina Real Esrate Limited

50,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000 ) equity shares of 10
- Devona Infrastoucture Limited

50,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000} ¢

- Serida Properties Limited

50,000 (31 March 2022 50,000) equity shares of 10

Aggregare book value of unquoted investments

explanatory information for the your eaded 31 Maxch 2023

31 March 2023

34 March 2022

(X in Million}

{¥ in Million}

* Investment in equity instuments of subsidianies are stared at cost as per IND AS 27, Sepacate Financul Suatements.

Investments ~ current

{nvestroent in mutual funds , quoted

Trust mutual fund overnight fund - Direct Plan - Growth #
[ 84,160.852 (31 March 20
st mutual fund Liquid Fund - Direct Plan owth
322 Wil Units NAV: 1,001.24 31 M

G

3506742 (31 March ;

Securities Re: oy Expense Fund
Other financial assets - curtent

Loans to employees

Security deposits

Note -9
Deferred tax assets/ {Habilities), net
Deferred

Provision of employee bens

it of ©

A% ASSEL ATISING ON ACCOt

1y, plant and equipment and mrangible ass

Prope

retatned e

iy

Ind AS rarnsition adpusorments i

ount of ¢

nt and equipment and miangib

The

has decided to sestrict recognition of Deferred Tax Assets on br
of deferred tax
Fuether these losses are

5 in near future. The company has Unabsorbed Busin

available for offset for max

fmum eight years

Caption wise movement in deferred wx as follows:

o

rom incurrence of losse:

forward o

o the extent th

0.50 .50
.50 030
0.50 050
050 0.50
.30 0.50
2.50 2.50
250 230
82.40 375330
38.90
128,30 575,50

&1

G0

0.90
240 360
0.0 .10
2.50 370
730 .40
3496 -

(0.10)

523.60

is convincing evidence

: probability of realisation

losses of T12,383.80 million (31 March 2022 Z15,100.90 mullion) on which no Deferred Tax Assets is creared,

Recogaised/
Particulars 81 April 2021 (Reversed) in other) g, o oniced /(Reversed) in profit and loss 31 March 2022
comprehensive
income
Deferred tax asser arising on account of :

Provision of employee benefits 2.00 {0.40) 9.40
Ind AS ramsition adjustments in retained caming £92.20 377.70 514.50
Deferred tax liabilities arising on:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 0.20 - .30 0.10)
Total 20140 - 377.60 523.60

{
B

daw Delhi
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Lucina Land Development Limired

Summary of signifi

Capion wise movement in defeered tax as follows:

it accounting poticies and other explanatory information for the year

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

{¥ in Million)

(% in Million)

Paxticulars 3% March 2022

Recognised/
{Reversed) in other
comprebensive
income

Recognised /(Reversed) in profit and loss

31 March 2023

Deferred tax asset arising on account of ;

Provision of employee benefits 9.40 210 7.3
Property, plant and equipmient and intangible assets - (3.90) 3.90
Ind AS racnsition adjustments in setained eaming 514.30 - 23.650 400.80
Deferred tax Habilities arising om
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 0.10) {0.10) -
“Total 523.60 - 2070 502.00
Note - 10
Noo-current tx assets, net
Advance income tax, including tax deductad ar source 20 78440
77.20 78.40
Note - 11
Other non-current assets
Prepuid expenses 200 1.00
2.00 1.00

Other curtent assets
{Unsecared , Considered Good)
A ,‘ b "iif?

CES

Advany 1/ secvite providers
Peep

Bulances with starutory auth

o mate

i exp

Others receivables

Mote- 12
Taventovies
Real estate properties - under developroent, st cost

Cax operties under development

Less: wansferred to developed properties

Real estate properties - developed, at cost

Cost of developed properties

I
1

ss: cost of revenue recognized all date

Counstruction materials in stock, at cost

5 the company has inventor
Previous year € 210 mithions)

Also refer note 19 for mong

yze: il
The weighted average race of interest ¢
Note- 13

Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables”

2290 miflion {

revioigs vear €77

hie underlying boi

rrowings o

12120 119,50
1835170
{18,043.00)

8,308.7¢

10,043.00 10,043.00
9.972.90 9,766.10
70,10 276.90
175.70 146.90
10,367.90 8,732.50

50 million}, and §

ciation of T 730 miliion

{iy Consideeed good - Unsecured 29270 255.00
frefer note no 19}

292,70 253.00
“The Company does not have any receivables which are either credit impaired or where there is significant increase in eredit sisk
As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Less than 6] 6 months to 1 year| 1-2years 2- 3 years More than 3 years Total
months
{ Undisputed trade receivables - considered 21070 1.10 3350 540 42.00 9270
() Undisputed trade receivibles - considered - - - -
(iify Undisputed trade receivables - credit - - - . .
(iv) Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - . B B .
{v} Disputed trade receivables - considered - - - - - -
(vi} Disputed trade receivables - credit impaized - - - - .
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Less than 6] 6 months to 1 year 1-2yeais 2- 3 years More than 3 years Total
months

(i) Undisputed trade recetvables - considered 9840 91.80 1210 1370 37.00 253.00
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered - - - -
(iiiy Undispured trade receivables - credit B - B -
(iv) Disputed trade recervables - considered good - - - - - -

{v) Disputed teade receivables - considered -

{vi} Disputed trade receivables - cr




s Developroeas Limited
Summary of significans acesunting policies and other explavatery informadon for the vear ended 31 March 2023
31 March 2023 3% Mareh 2022
(% in Million) {¥ in Miltion)
Note ~ 14
Cash and cash equivalenss
Cash on hand
lances with banks
In current accounts 14.00 27.50
14.00 27.90
Note~ 15
Other bank balances
Bank deposits™®
With manrity of more than the onths and upto twelve months 5.10 4.90
With maturity of more than months - 0.10
5.10 5.00
Less: Non-current bank balimces in fixed deposit accounts {refer note 8 - C 00
518 4.80
Interest Accrued on bank deposits - .10
510 4.90

2500 (31 March 2022 ¥ 4.90 million) are pledged for the purpose of Banle Gurantee,

acerued interest) { 31 march 2022 T 0.10 mallion) ace kept under lien as Bank Guarantee

Note - 16
Loans ~ current®

Inter-corporate loans to related partes
{ cured 144.30 292.30

144,30 292,30

Note - 174 31 March 2023 31 Barch 2022
Eguity share capial Number Amount MNumber Amount
i Authorised (¥ in Million) 7% in Million}
50,000 0.50 50,000 0.50
50,000 0.50 50,000 3.50

i Issued, subscribed and fully pad up

of face value of ¥ 10 aach 54, 050
£0,000.00 0.50 50,000 0.56
iii  Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shaves outsianding at the beginuing and at the end of the year

Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the year 50,000 50,000 0.30
Add: Issued during the year - - -
Less: Redeemed during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 30,000 0.50 50,000 .50

fv  Rights, preferences and resirictons amached to eguity shares

&

s held o the ror

om time to me, and are ent ny. (n the eve

ity one vore per share at mestin

any, the rermairung assets of the Company sh > the holder: squity shargs artios to the aumber of sh

i to the Company’s £

v 30000 Previous Year 50,000) equity shases of the Company is held by be smpany namely Indiabulls Real Estate Limited and its sominees.

P

vi  Details of shareholder holding more than 5% equity share capital and shares held by the Helding Company

Name of the equity shareholder Number of shares Dinmber of shages
Indiabulls Real Estate Limired® 30,000 50,000

Hneluding nonmiipze shares

vii  Company does not have any shar ved for co

ion other than cash during the immediately preceding five years. Company did not buy back any shares duting immediately

preceding five years. Company does not have any shares reserved for issue under op!

viii  Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Discl of shareholding of p as at 31 March 2023 is as follows :
Share Held by Promoters
Promoter Name As at 31 Mazch 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of shares % Total of Shares Number of shares % Total of Shares % Change during the year
indiabulls Real Estate Limited 50,000 100 50,000 100 -
(including nominee shares)

Disclosure of shareholding of promotess as at 31 March 2022 is as follows :

Share Held by Promotess
’Fromotcr Name As at:31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Numberof shares Y% Total of Shares Number of shares % Total of Shares % Change during the year
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited 50,000 100 50,000 100

{including nominee shares)
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1 Lanad Development Limited

ary of significant accouating policies and other explanaiory information for the yeas evded 31 March 2023
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(¥ in Million) {3 in Million}
Note - 178
B Optionally convertible debentures (‘OCDY
0.0001% Opticnally convertible debentures 2,76,450 376450 276.50
of face value of ¥ 1,000 sach fully paid up
2,76,450 276,50 2,76,450 276.50

Diuring the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company bad issued 2,688,109 optionally converiible debentures of face value of 1000 each bearing intesest @ 0.0001% per annum 1o its holders.

These debentures are convertible into equity shares at the option of the holder within 20 years from the date of issue. If holder does not execcise its right of conversion, the debentures will be
sedeemed at the end of the pedod of 20 years. During the yeas ended 31 March 2015, the Company has Redeemed 542,000 optonally convertible debenatutes of face value of ¥ 1,000 each,
During the yeat ended 31 Macch 2017, the Company has Redeemed 1,869,639 optionally convertible debentures of face value of 1,000 each.

Effective from 01 March 2020, the terms of the OCD have been changed. As per the revised terms, OCD are Convertible or redeemable at the option of issues, on or befiure the
the tezm. OCD are convertible in the rano of one equity share for each OCD

xpity of

Note - 18
Other equity
Other components of equity 2940
Debenture redemption reserve % 324.00
General rescrve J,IN SU 204.80
Retained earnings (9,231.60) {11,929.30;
(8.673.48) (11,371.10)
General reserve
The Company is required to create a general resecve out of the profits when the Company declaces dividend to sharehaldess.
Deferred emplo; fon reserve
The veserve is used to re < the grant dat the options issued to employees under Company’s emplo
mpany i reopired 10 create 2 dely
Mote - 19
A& Borrowings aon-custent
Secured loans:
Diebentur
mable} { 160270 3,122.20
weent b (419,60 7760
1,183.10 2,344.60
i Repayment terms {including current maturities) secupity deta on-convertible debennue
Pasticulars Maztarity date Sccumy 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
(¥ in Million) (% in Million}

3600 Redeemable non-convertible Repayable in 12 guarterly installments of 2 300 Refer Nore 1 below 1,60270 3,122.20

debennsres issued on 10 february  million
2022 for T 36,00 million @ ended 31
12.50% of face value 1,008,000

each

ting on 10 May 2022, During the year
wch, 2023 the company has repaid

1,584 million (previous year 60 million)
outstanding Non-convertible debenture,

These non-convertible debenture was listed on the Wholesale Debt Market segment of BSE Limited
Note 1

etals of security:

iy Fiest unkvng and exclusive mortgage on unsold wnventin

o7

cegating .87 Lo

i 5. £t sal

the Indiabull

ceounts, permitted ¢

g pari posu ¢ A
i & "Diann Infras

rrevocable and uncon

ent agresment iver\vu:n Diiana Infeastructare Limited & Lucing Land Develope

(vij, Deemed maortgage 5f units in case of uxmelmum. event 1 under defined.
B Borrowings - cuntent
Secured borrowings
Current maturities Non-convertible Debentures 419.60 777.60
Unsecured loans
Loans and advances from related parties ,772.20 11,078.50
10,191.80 11,856.10
Note - 20
A Provisions - non-current
Provision for employee benefits: frefir rmte: 47)
Gransity 2830
Compensated sbsences 7.40
35.70
B Provisions - cument
Provision for employee benefits: frefer note: 47)
Gratuity 120 1.30
Compensated absences .40 240
Provision for fnterest to customer 2610 26.10
23,70 27.80

e

e 5



Neote - 28
Trade payables ~ cusrent
i

Due to micr i enterpr
Due to others

Retention Money

Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2023

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

@ in Million)

2020

221.60

(% in Million)

Quistanding for the year ended 31 March 2023

srticnl

F 2 year to 3 year More than 3 years Total
@) MSME - 119.80
(i) Other than MSME 0.60 353340
{iity Disputed dues - 3 - -
(i Disputed dues - Other than - -
MSME
Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2022

. Outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2022

; 2 year to 3 year More than 3 years Total
(i MSME - 3.10

i 280 432.00

(1) Other than MS

(i} Disputed dues - MSME

{iv) Disputed dues - Other than
MEME

006 (“MSMED Act, 20

=)

340

wierest due thereon [

the
de tor

ount of interest paid by the b

@ supplier b

section 16, along with the an
wud the appointed day during e

mount of interest due and pay

ay dudng 1

the amount of fusther interest remaining due and pavable eve
as above are actually paid to the smali eaterp
as a deductible expendinure under section 23.

when the intecest dus

“The above information reg:

di

Note - 22
Other {inancial Habilities - current

Expanses payable

Bote - 23
Other current Uabilities

0 staEtutory 2

A

o

nce from custamers

ing Micro, Small and Medium Entsprises has been deteemined to the exstent such pa

wecrsed but not due on noa-convertible debentures

d governmeni authorities

seen identified on t

e basis of infbrmanon available with the Company.

110

60.10

87¢ 20.30
809850 6,962.00
8,107.20 £,982.30




Lacina Land Development Limited

Note - 24
Revenue from operations
Operating revenue

Revenue from real estate properties
Other operating income

Income from mamtenaace services

Interest from customers on overdue balances

Service and forfet
Others

1 teceipts

MNotwe - 25

Other income

Interest income on fixed deposits
Interest - others

Profit on sale of investmeats, aet
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Income on fair valuation of finan
Balance Witten Back
Miscellaneous income

Mote « 26

Closing st

Operatmg Expe

Note - 27
Employee benefits expense
Sularies and wages

Contribution to provident fund and other fands

Gratuity and leave encashment
Staff weltare expenses

Note - 28
Finance costs
Interest expenses on:

Income tax

Note - 22

Other expenses
Advertisement expenses
Baak charges

Auditor's remuneration - as auditor {rfer wote (i} bedow)

Books and periodicals
Communication expenses
Insurance expenses

Legal and professional charges

Loss/{profit) on sale /written off of fixed assets

Printing and stationery
Rates and taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Vehicles
Qthers
Brokerage and marketing expenses
Softwate expenses
Traveling and conveyance expenses
Miscellancous expenses
Customer incentive 4nd other charpes

instzuments

propct under des

7

%‘fg«« .
N AT

005875N
523 New Delhi

%

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2623

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

(% in Million)

(¥ in Million)

540 .
030 1130
2810 250
240 1.80
458.10 2,195.10
170 0.40
0.40 -
6.10 3.00
i 040
150 -
430 -
9.10 410
23,10 7.90

1,809.08
8 180.40
040 040
9.00 2.80
.40
233.50 187.00
- 4.10
- 9.1
290 0.10
0.20 (10
240 1.50
- 0.90
0.50 0.50
G20 030
17.80 22.00
370 -
030 050
3.60 9.20
1160 1.60
270 3.50
4570 33.90
0.80 0.10
0,60 0.60
810 1.00
115.30 76.60
205.90 152.40




Lucina Land D
Summrary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory nformadon

i)

Limited

o 31 March 2023

1

r the yoar eod

31 March 2023 3% March 2022
(X in Million) (¥ in Million}

Details of auditor's remuneration
Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee 150
2.40 150

Note - 30

Income tax

Tax expense comprises ofi

Current income tax, inculding eadier year tax expenses - -

Deferred tax (refer note 9) 2170 377.60

Income 1ax expense reporied in the statement of profit and Joss 2170 377.60

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company at 25168
{Previous Year 25.168%jand the seported tax expense in profit or loss ax Hows:

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic effective tax rate
Accountiag profit/ (Joss) before tax from continuing operations 2,719.60 849.00

Accounting profit/ {loss) before income tax 2,719.66 849.00

At statutory mcome tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2022: 25.168%)

=

25.168%
2

myputed expected wax expense 68447 13.68
The o as unabsorbed business los on) that are avathble for of o for 4 raaxanum

pesiod cight years from the b aabsaoshed losses vongder

sty tvolved

arouad futice busine

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (raxable) in calenlating taxable fncome:

Tax ympact of expenses which will be never alfowed 2469
impact of vxpenses which will be allowed (262
impact of brought forward losses setup during the veas (21375

Deffered Tax assets reversed/ {recognised) 37760

Tacome tax expense 377.60

Note - 31

Earnings per share (EPS)

The Company's Barnings per Share ("EPS") s determined based on the net profit attrbutable to the sharcholders. Basic ¢ per share is computed using the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted eacnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive
common equivalent shares outstandimg during the year including share options, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computatons;
1 P

Profit/ (loss) attributable to equity helders for basic earnings 2,697.90 471.40
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution 269790 471.40
Weighted average number of Egnity shares duning the year 50,000 S0.000
Weighied average number of Equity shares for basic and diluted earning per share 50,000 56,000

Earnings per equity share

(1) Basic (%)

740 9,430.80
(2) Diluted &) 7

AD 9,430.80

—
.
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Note ~ 32
A)  Financial Instruments by category

for the year ended 31 March 2023

(X in Million)
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FYTPL FVOCT Amortised
{Beenote | | (Seenote2 cost (See note 1| (See note 2 o8t

below) below) below) below)
Financial assets
Investments®

Mutual funds 12830 - - 575.50 -
Trade receivables - 292,70 - - 253.00
Loans - - 14430 - - 292.30
Cash and cash equivalenss - - 14.00 - 27.90
Other bank balances - 510 - - 4.90
Other financial assets - - 3.50 - - 4.60
Total financial assets 128.30 - 459.60 575.50 - 582.70
Notes
1. These financial assets are mandatonly measured at fair value through profit and loss.
2. These financial assets represent investments i equity instruments designated as such upon initial recognition.
* Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries are stated at cost as per IND AS 27, separate financial siatements.
(¥ in Million)
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
FVIPL FYOCT Amortised FVIPL FVOCE Amortised

Financial Habilities

Borrowt red nterest)

(ncladic

Trade payables

Security deposits

Orther fimancial labilities

Total financial liabilities

- 14,910.70

14,697.90

B} Fairvalue measurements

(i) Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and fnancial liabilitdes measured at faie value in the statement of fimancial position are grouped ito three Levels of a fair value
hierarchy, The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant iputs ro the measurement, as folloy
Level L1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financal instraments.

Level 2: The fawr value of rwial instruments that are not traded i an active market is determined vsing valuation techniques wh
the use of observable market data rely as litde as possible on entity specific estimates.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable marker dat, the instrument 35 incladed ia level 3.

i} Financial assets and Gnancial Habilitles measured at fair value - secwering fair value measurements (% in Million)
31 March 2023 Level | Level2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial inseruments ar FVITPL
Investment in Mutual Fund 128.30 - 128.30
Total financial assets 128.30 - - 128.30
Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed (X in Million)
31 March 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial insteuments at FVIPL
Investment m Mutual Fund 57550 - - 575.50
Total financial assets 575.30 - - 575.50

ii) Financial instruments measured at amortised cost

For Amortsed Cost instruments , cateying value represents the best estimate of fair value,

i) Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to the liquidity risk and credit risk, The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to
and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements,

v)

-

Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to valie financial mstruments include:

(i} Use of net asset value for muteal funds on the basis of the staterment received from investee party.
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Note -33
Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, hquedi

rigk and ceedit risk. The company’s board of directors has overall responsibiliy for establ

risk management framework. This note explains the sources of tisk which the entity is exposed to and haw the entity mana

ishment and oversight of Company's

ges the risk and related impact in the financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the dsk that a counterparty fails o discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, weade
secelvables and financial assers measured at amortised cost. The Company contmmously monitors defaults of custorners and nther counterparties and incorporates this information into its
ceedit risk controls.

Credit 735k management

Credir sk rating

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial
assets.

A: Low credit risk
B: Moderate credit risk
B: High credit risk

! Asset group ] Basis of categorisarion ] Provision for expenses credit loss |
gLOW credit tisk [ Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans and other financial assets 1 12 month expected credit loss, life time expected credit loss ?

In respect of taade recetvables, the company recogni
Based on busines

per contract, |

s a provision for lifettme expected credit loss,
ALY O ‘3(*,1"31 i

envicoument 1o which the Co 2 default on a Gnancial asset is

fifferences between current and b

onsidered when the counter party fails ©0 make payments within the agreed time pertod as
£

058 LA10E ulis are ical economic conditons,

flecting do hased on actual credit loss expedence sad considering

oy ora b

Assets are weitten off when there is 0o reasomble expecmtion of recovery, such fe claong bankey

rritien off and attempis to endorce rep:

P

with partics whose bakin c 5 e are tecog

Assets under credit risk — {X in Million)
Credit eating Pardculars 31 March 2023 | 31 Masch 2022
Low credi risk {ash and cash equivalenis, other bank balances, loans and other financial assets 587.90 1,158.20

peration of, il assets

The Company's principal business activities are development of real estxte projects and all other related activities. The Company +vables are for real estate project. Loans

18 IR

and other fnancal statements majorly repre ompany loans and other advance

Assets under credit rislk~ (¥ in Million)
Credir rating Pasticulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

A Cash and Cash Equivaleats 14.00 27.90

A Trade eceivables 292.70 253.001

A Loans 144.30] 29230

A Other bank balances 5.10 4.90

A Other financial ass 3.50, 4.60

A Investments in Subsidiaides 2.50 2.50

et and whether there has been

ets for ali peniod presented. The Compuray considers the probabiliyy of default upos initial recogaition of a

J. definition of defaule s determined by considering the business environment in w

43

a significant increase n credit nisk
aperaies and other maceo

<. {0 gener

Credir risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses

The Compagy provides for 12 month expected eredit losses for following financial assets —

As at 31 March 2023 {T in Million)
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of
carrying amount at defanlt Iosses impairment provision
Cash and cash equivalents 14.00 - 14.00
Trade receivables 292,70 . 202,70
Other bank balances 5.10 - 310
Loans 144.30 - 144.30
Other financial assets 3.50 - 3.50
As at 31 March 2022 (X in Million)
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net-of
catrying amount at default Ipsses impairment provision
Cash and cash equivalents 27.96 - 27.90
Trade receivables 253.00 - 253.00
Other bank balances 4.90 - 4.90
Loans 292.30 - 29230
Other financial asseis 4.60 4.60

R




Expecred ucdti sz for trade receiv, s under simpiified approack
wables does not have 58 a5 registy of

periods pmﬁcuteﬁ‘ the Company made no wnite-offs of trade teceivables and no recoveries from e

ted vrodit

24 old ts BERCTAS

(B} Liguidity risk
The company's principal spurces
company believes that the working capinl is suffi

STt

Company/ Fellow Subsidiary company.

dingly no lguidity sk is being perceived.
&l el Y ¢

Maturities of financial labilities

b

of hqudity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is geneeated from operations. The company
et o meet s current requirements. Company also have an option to armnge funds by mking loans and borrowing from Holding

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities iato relevant maturity groupings based on their conteactual matusitics

PRy«

s o outsanding bank borrowings.

e

® in Million)
31 March 2023 Less than 1 | Between 1 and| Between 2 and | Between 3and 4] More than 4 Total
year 2 years 3 years years years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings:including accured interesty 1),192.40 1,183.10 - - 14,375.50
"Trade Payables 47320 - ~ 473.20
Other Financials Liabilities 63.60 - - 63.60
Total 1,729.20 1,183.10 - ~ 11,912.30
(% in Million)
31 March 2022 . Less than | | Between 1 and] Between 2and | Between 3and 4| More than 4 Total
year 2 years 3 years years years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings:including accured inierest) 11,857, 1,200.00 1,144.60 14,201.80
Trade Payables 43740 - - 437.10
Other Financials Liabilities 6010 60,18
Total 12,354.40 1,260.00 1,344.60 - 14,699.00
{0y Marke risk
(i) lmterest rare risk
¢ Company’s fixed tare 5 ath a0k subj s defined in Ind AS 107, since nesther the car ror the futuee cash Hows will Sucmate becavse of 2

change in market interest rates.

Erate, Bel

cw 18 the overall exposure of the borrow

(X in Million)

The Company’s varable rate borrowing is subject to inters
Particulars

31 March 2023

34 March 2022

Variable rate borrowing

Fixed rate botrowing

11,574.90

14,200.70

"Total borrowings 11,374.90 4,200.70
Sensitivity

Profit o Ioss is sensitive 1o higher/lower interest expense from variable rate borrowings as 2 result of changes in interest rates, (X in Million)
Particulars 31 March 2023 § 31 March 2022

Interest rates ~ increase by 1%

Interest rates — deceease by

(i) Price risk
Company docs not have any price

S,
P
gy

i

I

}

W
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Suramary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note -34

A

o]
o

Revenue related disclosures
Disaggregation of revenue
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

(® in Million}
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Revenue from operations
(&) Revenue from sale of properties and developed plots 421.90 2,179.50
(b} Revenue from muaintenance services 5.40 -
{c) Other operating income 30.80 15.60
Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 458,10 2,195.10
Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:
( in Million)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract Uabilisies
Advance from consurmers EX 6,962.00
Total contract Uabilities 8,098.50 6,962.00
Receivables
Trade receivables 292.70 253.00
Total receivables 292,70 253,00

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchan, storner. Contract lability is the entity's obligation to transfer

se for goods or services transferred t© the cu

goods or services to a customer for which the entity hag received consideration from the custom s are teansferred to receivables

whea the rights become unconditional and contract liabil

Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

X in Million)
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Contract Liabilities Contract liabilities
Advances from consumers Advances from consumers
Opening balance 6,962.00 7,299.50
Addition durag the year 1,558.40 1,842.00
Adjustment on account of revenue recognised (421.90) ,179.50)
Closing balance 8,098.50 6,962.00

Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Aprl 2018, ceplaces existing revenue
recogaition requirements, The application of Ind AS 115 has impacted the Company's accounting for recognition of revenue from real estate projects. The
Company has applied full retcospectve approach in adopting the new standard and accordingly restated the previous period numbers basis completon of
contract for all the real estate projects across India. The following table summarises the impact on transition to Ind AS 115 on each individual line items. Line
items that are not affected by changes have not been included.

Reconciliation of revenue recogmised with contract revenue:

{ in Million)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract revenue 421.90 2,220.00
Adjustment for:
{a) Subvention cost* - (40.50)
Revenue recognised : 421.90 2,179.50

* Subvention cost represent the expected cash outflow under the arrangement determined basis time elapsed.
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Now - 35

Details with respect 10 the Bruami properties

> proceedings have been udated oy pending sgainst the enticy under the Benami Trnsaction

1988 for the year snded 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note - 36
Undisclosed income

There is no such income which has not been disclosed in the bocks of accounts. No such income is surrendered
March 2022 in the tax as Tax Act, 1961

isclosed as income duong the year snded 31 March 20
sments under Incom:

Note - 37
Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Cnrrency

Profic or foss on tansactions involving Crypio curency or Virnal Cusrency No such transaction has taken placs duting the year ended 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022,
Amount of currency held as at the reporting date No such transaction has taken plice during the yeay ended 31 March
} 2 3 f ey

2023 and 31 Macch 2022,

Dieposits ot advances from any pesson for the pumpose of trading or investng in Crypto Curtzency / v No such transaction has taken place during the year ended 31 March
currency 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note - 38

Ratio Analysis

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

Particulass Numerator Denominator 31March 2023{ 31 March 2022/ Variance
Cutrent Ratio Turrent As Current Liabili 0.60
Dbt Equity Rario# Towl Debis Shareholder's Equity {1.35)
Dbt Service Coverage Radodit ¢ 1.38
NA
1.68

rage: Trade Recer

Avernge Trade P

ang NA

Revenue G6.35%

Rewirn of Capind Bmployed (ROCE)™ NA
Inventory tumover rape™™" 012 T4 ALY

ot 5T

i current and previcus y

a1t yens

FTrade Pagables smmover ratio: variation is due © decrease in ditect expenses
3§ Rado c2

l"‘?‘i‘:t Pry
“"Ratie

ventory fumover ratic: varianon is due t Decrease io cost of go

e calenlared due o negative we capital in curment and pr

vasiation is due to increase in net pofit, )
Ve i CULTent year
ods sold.

calculated due to negative Baming before inwrest ta

Note - 39
Wilful Defaulter:

No baok or financial sastisution has declared the company as

it defaulrer” dun

rch 2072,

¢ the year ended 31 March 2023 and 3

Note - 40
Details in respect of Utilizaton of Borrowed funds and share preminn:

Particulars Description
Transacsions No funds have been advanced or loaned o invested (either from borrowed fund shate
oth

wding foreign sntitiss {
rded in writing o oi that the Inteemediary shall lesd or tnvest in party idennified by
or on behalf of the Compaay (Ulumate Benefictarie:

tions wher

T entity has recerved any fund from any ¢ The Company has nat received any fund from any party(s) Funding Pasty} with the
¥ ¥ ¥ pany ¥ )i 18) ¢ 3
entities, including foreign entity. understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
» & 3t ¥ 4 Py Y Y
persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the funding party (“Ulimate Beneficiaties™} ot
provide any guatantee, security or the ltke on behalf of the Ultimate Benefi

teS,

Note - 41

Relationship with Struck off Companies:

Neo tansaction has been made with the company sta
2023 and 31 March 2022

>ff under section 248 of The Compunies Act, 2013 or section 360 of Companies Act, 1956 dunng the year ended 31 March

Mote - 42

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Regiswar of Coinpanies:

All applicable cases where registeation of chasges or satisfaction is required with Registrar of Comparu
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

¢5 have been done. No registration or satsfaction is pending for the year ended

Note - 43
Compli with ber of layers of

P
The company has complied with the number of layers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 and no
fayers of companies has been esmblished beyond the limit prescrbed as per above said section / rules, during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Note-44

Loan or ad d to the p directors and KMPs and the related parties:

Particular 31 March 2023 31 Masch 2022 31 Muarch 2023 31 March 2022

Type of Borrower Amount of Loan or advance | Amount of Loan or advance in Precentage to the total recentige to the total Leans and
in the nature of loan the natare of loan oustanding | Loans and advances is advances in natures of loaus(%)
outstanding (# in million) natures of loans(%)
(¥ in million}) p—

Related Parties (Refor nafe: 26 144,30 ) 100} 100

Total 144.30 S0 100, 100

These loans are granted to related parries which are repayable on demand.

Ny -
&7 FRrA
’5, &1 005975N
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Wote - 45

Capital mnanagement

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:
e To ensure Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, and
¢ To provide adequate return to shareholders

Management assesses the capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structute, The
Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company manages its capital requitements by reviewing its net debt
position, where net debt is equal to non-current borrowing (including cutrent matutities of non-cutrent borrowings)
and short-term borrowing net of cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances.

Note - 46
Related party transactions
Relationship ‘ Name of the related parties
i) Related parties exercising control
- Holding Company Indiabulls Real Hstate Limited

i) Related parties where control exisis
- Subsidiary Companies Noble Realtors Limited
Nilgiri Infrastructure Development Limited
Albina Real Estate Limited
Devona Infrastructure Limited
Serida Properties Limited
iii) Other related parties

-~ Fellow subsidiary Companies* Elena Properties Limited
Diana Infrastructure Limited
Indiabulls Constructions Limited
Citra Developers Limited

* With whom transactions have been made during the year /previous yeat.
a) Staternent of material transactions with related party:

(X in million)
For the year ended 31 March | For the year ended 31 March
2023 2022

Particulars

Loans taken /(repaid), net
Fellow subsidiary companies:
- Indiabulls Constructions Limited 1,663.70 (1,693.00)

Loans taken Write back
Fellow subsidiary companies:
- Indiabulls Constructions Limited (2,970.00) -

Loans & Advance (given) /received
back, net

A) Subsidiary Companies:

- Nilgiri Infrastructure Development
Limited

167.80 (0.00)

B) Fellow subsidiary companies:
- Diana Infrastructure Limited

(19.80) .
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Material Advance given / (received
back), net
Fellow subsidiary companies:
- Indiabulls Constructions Limited -~ (884.20)
b) Statement of balances cutstanding: (% in million)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Loans & Advance taken:
A) Fellow subsidiary companies:
- Indiabulls Constructions Limited 9,772.20 11,078.50
Loans given
B) Subsidiary Companies:
- Nilgiri Infrastructure Development Limited 65.50 233.30
C) Fellow subsidiary Companies:
- Diana Infrastructure Limited 78.80 59.00
Material Advance given
Fellow subsidiary Companies:
- Indiabulls Constructions Limited 23.00 23.06
OCD Holder:
Fellow Subsidiary companies:
Elena Properties Limited 6.60 6.60
Citra Developers Limited 65.30 65.30
Selene Infrastructure Limited 2,04.60 2,04.60
Note — 47
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company has made ¥ 0.30 million (31 March 2022 ¥ (.30 million) contribution in respect of provident fund.
Defined Benefit Plan
The Company has the following Defined Benefit Plans:

@ Gratuity (Unfunded)

e Compensated absences (Unfunded)

Risks associated with plan provisions

Discount rate risk Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase
the plan's lability.
Mortality risk Actual death & liability cases proving lower or higher than

assumed in the valuation can impact the labilities.

Salary risk Actual salary increase will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in
salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also
increase the Hability.

Withdrawal risk Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed
withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
valuations can impact Plan's liability.

005975N
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significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{rraruity

The Company provides for gratity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who
are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are cligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on
retitement/termination is the employee's last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days
salary multiplied for the number of years of service. Gratuity plan is a non-funded plan.

Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized in other comprehensive income (% in million)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial (gain)/loss on atising from change in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumptions (0.50) (3.00)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on atising from change in experience adjustments 0.70 2.40
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under: (X in million)
For the year For the year
ended ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Mazrch, 2022
Setvice cost 2.70 3.30
Net Interest cost 2.10 2.00
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 4.80 5,30
Move i iability re ized in the heet is as = - sirs
Movement in the Hability recognized in the balance sheei is as undes (% in million)
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 29.60 28.60
Current service cost 270 3.30
Interest cost 2.10 2.00
Actuarial (gain)/loss, net 0.20 (0.60)
Benefits paid (11.30) (3.60
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 23.30 29.60
- Current 1.20 1.30
- Non-Current 22.10 28.30

For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:
(% in million)

Particulars Gratuity
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.36% 7.18%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair
value of plan assets has not been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discouat
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and
that have terms to matutity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on
management’s historical experience.
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Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation

and other explanatory information

- A £ s g £ sl
Oothe onancial

(¥ in million)

As at As at
31 March 2023 Amount 31 March 2022 Amount
2) | April 2023 - March 2024 1.20 | Aptil 2022 - March 2023 1.30
b) | April 2024 - March 2025 0.70 | April 2023 - March 2024 2.40
c) | April 2025 - March 2026 0.40 | April 2024 - March 2025 0.70
d) | April 2026 - March 2027 2.20 | April 2025 - March 2026 0.50
€) | April 2027 - March 2028 0.40 | April 2026 - March 2027 3.80
f) | April 2028 - March 2029 0.30 | Aptil 2027 - March 2028 0.40
g) | April 2029 onwards 18.10 | April 2028 onwards 20.60
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity Hability (X in million)
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the yeas 23.30 29.60
2) | Impact due to increase of 0.50 % {1.30) (1.60)
b) | Impact dee to decrease of 0.50 % 1.40 1.70
Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 23.30 29.60
a) | Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 1.40 1.80
b) | Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (1.30) (1.60)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material & hence impact of change not caleulated.

Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for sick and earned leaves. The amount of provision of 0.40
million (31 March 2022 €0.40 million) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However based on past experience, the Company does not expect all
employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months, therefore based on
the independent actuarial report, only a certain amount of provision has been presented as current and remaining as

non-cutrrent,

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation:

(% in million}
For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in finandial assumptions (0.10) (0.80)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in experience assumptions (1.30) (0.30)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Demographic Assumpton - -
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under: (X in million)
For the year For the year
ended ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Setvice cost 0.90 1.10
Net Interest cost 0.60 0.50
Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year (1.40) (1.10)
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 0.10 0.50
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Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as unden

(€ in million})

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 5.70 7.20
Cutrrent setvice cost 0.90 1.10
Interest cost 0.60 0.50
Actuarial (gain)/loss, net (1.50) (1.10)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 5,70 7.70
- Current 0.40 0.40
- Non-Current 5.30 7.30

For determination of the Hability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:

Compensated absences
Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate 7.36% 7.18%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mogtality Lives Mottality

(2012-14) (2012-14)

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair
value of plan assets has not been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of televant economic matkets and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on

management’s historical experience.

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation (% in million)
As at As at
31 March 2023 Amount 31 March 2022 Amount
a) | April 2023 - March 2024 0.30 | April 2022 - March 2023 0.40
by | April 2024 - March 2025 0.20 | April 2023 - March 2024 0.70
o) | Apsl 2025 - March 2026 0.10 | April 2024 - March 2025 0.20
d) | April 2026 - March 2027 0.60 | April 2025 - March 2026 0.10
e} | April 2027 - March 2028 0.10 | April 2026 - March 2027 1.50
f) | Aptl 2028 - March 2029 0.10 | April 2027 - March 2028 0.10
g | April 2029 onwards 4.20 | Apsil 2028 opwards 4.80
Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences liability
(X in million)
As at As at
Pardculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 5.70 7.70
a) | Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (0.30) (0.40)
b) | Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.30 0.40
Impact of the change in salaty increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 5.70 7.70
a) | Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.30 0.40
b) | Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.30) 0.40)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal ate not ma

YETC {mpact of change not calculated.




\ . " .
nrmation to the finencial

statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note- 48

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the
Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for
the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stake holders which are
under active consideration by the Ministry. Based on an initial assessment by the Company, the additional impact on
Provident Fund contributions by the Company is not expected to be matetial, whereas the likely additional impact on
Gratuity liability/ contributions by the Company could be material. The Company will complete their evaluation once
the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in the financial results in the period in which, the Code
becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published

Note- 49
Share based payments

The employees of the Company have been granted option as per the existing schemes of Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
(Holding Company'). On exercise, the employees will be allotted shares of the Holding Company. The Company has
accounted for charge related to its employees amounting to INiL (31 March 2022 ¥ Nil) with a corresponding credit
to Bquity.

MNote — 50
Legal Case:

The Company has Certain Litigation cases pending; however, based on legal advice, the management does not expect
any unfavourable outcome resulting in matetial adverse effect on the financial positon of the Company

Bank Guarantee:

Guarantee provided by the bank (secured by way of fixed deposits of the Company): ¥ 5.00 million(Previous year €
4.90 million).

Disputed with tax authorities: (X in million)

Particulars As at As at]
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Income tax demand in respect of which appeals have been filed for AY 17.90 17.90
2011-12(260A-Appeal )
Income tax demand in respect of which appeals have been filed for AY - 3.60
2018-19(246A-CIT Appeals)
Service Tax Demand in respect of which company have filled appeal with 1970 19.70
Commissioner (Appeals) Mumbai for F'Y 2011-12 to Feb 2016 ) )
Show cause notice received for Reversal of excise credit on WIP as at
30.06.17 and Cess balances taken in Trans-1 for the period 2012-13 to June 8.70 8.70
17
VAT demand on input credit 6.40 6.40

There are no other contingent liabilities and commitments to be reported as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Note —~ 51

Exceptional item for the year ended 31 March 2023 includes effect of ¥ 2,970.00 million due to wtite back of payables

based on the internal assessments of the new management.
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MNote ~ 52
Segmental information

The Company's ptimary business segment is reflected based on principal business activities cartied on by the Company
ie. development of real estate projects and all other related activities which as per Ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting’
is considered to be the only reportable business segment. The Company is operating in India which is considered as a
single geographical segment.

Note — 53
Reconciliation of Habilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows

The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as following below:

(X in million)
; Non-current borrowings
Particulars (including g
cufrent maturities)
Net debt as at 01 April 2021 14,602.50
Proceeds from curtent/ non-current borrowings (including cutrent maturities) 5,287.20
Repayment of current/ non-current borrowings (including current maturities) (5,687.90)
Interest Expense 77.50
Interest Paid (77.50)
Net debt as at 31 March 2022 14,201.80
Proceeds from curtent/ non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 2,081.30
Repayment of curtent/ non-current borrowings (including current maturities) (2001.60)
Borrowings Write back (2,970.00
Interest Expense 387.40
Interest Paid (323.40)
Net debt as at 31 March 2023 11,375.50
Note ~ 54
Other matters

a. The Company has not entered into any derivative instrument duting the year. The Company does aot have any
foreign currency exposures towards receivables, payables of any other derivative instrument that have not been

hedged.

b. In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required
to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31 March 2023 and 31 Match 2022.

c. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all current assets and long term loans & advances, appeating in the
balanice sheet as at 31 March 2023, have a value on realization, in the ordinary course of the Company’s business,
at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the financial statements. In the opinion of the board of
directors, no provision is required to be made against the recoverability of these balances.
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